
PUBLIC NOTICE AND PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA 
October 13, 2014 

WELCOME! We are very glad you have joined us for today’s Planning and Zoning meeting. The Planning and Zoning 
Board is an advisory board to City Council comprised of citizen members who voluntarily and without compensation 
devote their time and talents to a variety of zoning and land development issues in the community. All P&Z 
recommendations are subject to final action by City Council. The results of today’s meeting will be presented at the City 
Council meeting on October 21, 2014 for approval of recommended actions. Any person desiring to appeal a 
recommended action of the Board should observe the notice regarding appeals below. CAUTION: Untimely filing by 
any appellant shall result in an automatic denial of the appeal. 

   Susan Lomas       Marion Rayburn      Chris Rader      Regina Dunay       Wade Fischer 
   Board Member      Board Member       Board Member      Chairwoman    Board Member 

The Planning and Zoning Board as the Local Planning Agency for the City of Edgewood will meet at 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, to consider the items of business listed herein at the time and 
date indicated below.  

Monday, October 13, 2014   6:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. NEW BUSINESS

(a) Approval of Minutes: 

(i) May 12, 2014 

(ii) June 9, 2014 

(iii) July 14, 2014 

(b) Russell Home Site Plan ~ 510 Holden Ave

(c) Comprehensive Plan Amendment Transmittal of 

Scriveners’ Error

4. COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS



FUTURE MEETINGS: (SCHEDULE CONTINGENT UPON SUBMITTAL OF ITEMS THAT REQUIRE 
CONSIDERATION OF THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AS THE LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY FOR THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD) 

October 13, 2014 ~  P&Z Meeting 
• October 21, 2014 ~ City Council Meeting
• November 10, 2014 ~ P&Z Meeting
• November 18, 2014 ~ City Council Meeting
• December 8, 2014 ~ P&Z Meeting
• December 16, 2014 ~ City Council Meeting

GENERAL RULES OF ORDER 
The Board is pleased to hear non-repetitive comments related to business before the Board; however, a five (5) minute time 
limit per person has been set by the Board. Large groups are asked to name a spokesperson. If you wish to appear before the 
Board, please fill out an Appearance Request/Lobbyist Registration Form and give it to the City Clerk. When recognized by 
the Chairman, state your name and address and speak directly into the microphone. The City is guided by ROBERTS 
RULES OF ORDER in governing the conduct of the meeting. Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in 
any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at 407-851-2920 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  

WE ASK THAT ALL ELECTONIC DEVICES (IE. CELL PHONES, PAGERS) BE SILENCED DURING 
OUR MEETING! 

Thank you for participating in your government! 

APPEALS: According to Edgewood City Code Section 26-24 (2), “any person aggrieved by any 
recommendation of the Board acting either under its general powers or as a Board of Adjustment may file a 
notice of appeal to the City Council within seven (7) days after such recommendation is filed with the City 
Clerk

 

You are welcome to attend and express your opinion. Please be advised that Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes state that if you decide to appeal a decision 
made with respect to any matter, you will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. In accordance with the 
American Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person with a disability as defined by the ADA needs special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, he or 
she should telephone the City Clerk at (407) 851-2920. 



Planning & Zoning Board 
May 12, 2014 

Attendees: 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 
Susan Lomas, Board Member 
Marion Rayburn, Board Member 
Wade Fischer, Board Member 

Absent: 
Jon Van Voorhis, Board Member 

Staff: 
Cinnamon Wild, Administrative Assistant 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairwoman Regina Dunay called the Planning & Zoning Board meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance.  Administrative Assistant Wild announced there is a quorum.   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• December 9, 2013 Planning & Zoning Board Meeting Minutes

Board Member Lomas made the Motion to approve; Seconded by Board Member Rayburn.  Unanimously 
approved (4/0). 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03 ESTATE SALES 

Chairwoman Dunay read Ordinance 2014-03 in title only.   She noted that this is the first reading of 
Ordinances 2014-03 and 2014-04.  Attorney Smith confirmed for Chairwoman Dunay that this is the only time 
that the P&Z Board will be reviewing the proposed ordinances.  

Attorney Smith gave some background and reasons as to why the City would want to adopt a new ordinance.  

Attorney Smith clarified for Board Member Lomas that two (2) consecutive weekends are allowed for estates 
sales due to rain outs.   

1 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

May 12, 2014 



The Board discussed how the language in the ordinance indicating no permit being required for the Estate 
Sales and Attorney Smith clarified that is the old language and it will need to be revised.   

Board Member Lomas made the Motion to recommend approval; Seconded by Board Member Fischer.  
Unanimously approved (4/0). 

Administrative Assistant Wild announced that Council will consider the first reading of this Ordinance in their 
May Council meeting. 

ORDINANCE 2014-04  – MEDICAL MARIJANA 

Chairwoman Dunay read Ordinance 2014-04 in title only.  

Attorney Smith gave an explanation of the history of the Medical Marijuana Bill.  He explained the 
purpose of the Ordinance is not a permanent solution.  He said you cannot make illegal zoning of this type 
of use.  He noted that the City will have specific criteria that have to be met for this type of approval.  

Attorney Smith noted there are some revisions he would like to see due to what was passed in the 
legislative session.     

Board Member Rayburn made the Motion to recommend approval; Seconded by Chairwoman Dunay. 
Unanimously approved 4/0. 

Chairwoman Dunay questioned Administrative Assistant Wild about future meetings and Administrative 
Assistant Wild noted the upcoming meetings to come before the P&Z Board.  

NEW BUSINESS 

None. 

COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

With no further business or discussion, the Planning and Zoning Board meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 

___________________________ 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 

ATTEST 

______________________ 

Bea L. Meeks, MMC, CPM 
City Clerk  



Planning & Zoning Board 
June 9, 2014 

Attendees: 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 
Susan Lomas, Board Member 
Marion Rayburn, Board Member 

Absent: 
Jon Van Voorhis, Board Member 
Wade Fischer, Board Member 

Staff: 
Cinnamon Wild, Administrative Assistant 
Ray Bagshaw, Mayor 
Ellen Hardgrove, Planner 
Chris Francisco, Police Chief 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bagshaw introduced to the audience and the Planning & Zoning Board the City’s new Chief of Police, 
Chris Francisco.   

Chairwoman Dunay called the Planning & Zoning Board meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance.  Administrative Assistant Wild confirmed for Chairwoman Dunay that there is a quorum. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• March 3, 2014 – Special P&Z meeting for Russell Home.

Chairwoman Dunay made the motion to approve the  revision of minutes per hand-written instructions; 
Seconded by Board Member Rayburn.  Unanimously approved 3/0. 

1 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

June 9, 2014 



NEW BUSINESS 

Chairwoman Dunay opened the meeting and noted that the board will be considering three applications 
submitted by Boise Cascade, located at 75 W. Holden Avenue (Application #2014-04 for Lot Split, 
Rezoning and Special Exception).   

Planner Hardgrove came forward and presented her report.  After discussion, Attorney Smith confirmed 
for Mayor Bagshaw that due to incorrect legal and improper placement of signage providing notice of 
meeting it would be best to table the meeting to July 14, 2014.  Mayor Bagshaw made the announcement 
to invite residents to come forward and express their concerns and any questions they may have regarding 
the following applications for Boise Cascade: 

• Lot Split
• Rezoning
• Special Exception

The following residents came forward to make comment: 

• David Slaten, 4507 Forrestal Ave
• Jim Worthen, HAINC
• David Nesbit, 4360 Ilene Ct.
• William & Aileen Helger, 4521 Forrestal Ave
• Billie Fitzhugh, 4516 Forrestal Ave
• Randall Sumner, 305 Krueger St.

COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

With no further business or discussion, the Planning and Zoning Board meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

___________________________ 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 

ATTEST 

_____________________ 

Bea L. Meeks, MMC, CPM 
City Clerk  

2 



Planning & Zoning Board 
July 14, 2014 

Attendees: 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 
Susan Lomas, Board Member 
Marion Rayburn, Board Member 

Absent: 
Jon Van Voorhis, Board Member 
Wade Fischer, Board Member 

Staff: 
Cinnamon Wild, Administrative Assistant 
Ray Bagshaw, Mayor 
Ellen Hardgrove, Planner 
Chris Francisco, Police Chief 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairwoman Dunay called the Planning & Zoning Board meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance.  Administrative Assistant Wild confirmed for Chairwoman Dunay that there is a quorum. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• There were no minutes to be approved

NEW BUSINESS 

Chairwoman Dunay noted that the Board will be considering the three applications submitted by Boise 
Cascade, located at 75 W. Holden Avenue (Application #2014-04 for Lot Split, Rezoning and Special 
Exception).   

Planner Hardgrove came forward and presented her report, she noted that this request is for additional 
storage for Boise Cascade.  Planner Hardgrove noted that the subject property is Fellowship Baptist 
Church.  Planner Hardgrove explained to the Board and audience, in order for Boise to obtain the 

1 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

July 14, 2014 



additional outdoor storage, the Board will review and consider the following three (3) applications for 
approval: 

(1) Subdivision of church property (so Boise can purchase the new lot) 
(2) Rezoning of the new lot to C-3 
(3) Special Exception of C-3 lot for approval of outdoor storage.  

Planner Hardgrove said that all three applications will be considered in this evening’s meeting.  Planner 
Hardgrove referred to a map in the P&Z packet, she provided an explanation of the map.  Planner 
Hardgrove said that Staff is recommending approval of all three (3) requests subject to specific conditions 
of approval. Planner Hardgrove noted that the new lot must be used jointly with the adjacent property to 
provide standard access, because the new lot provides no access per subdivision regulations.  

Below are the list of conditions of approval for the C-3 Approval, the rezoning application: 

(1) Staff recommends that the property is to be used with adjacent C-3 zoned land.  

(2)  Staff recommends an 8’ high wall to provide a permanent physical barrier and help maintain 
property value of the homes.  Plus the recommendation of a wall of vegetation, one (1) shade tree 
per every 40’ and an infill of shrubs that can archive a 25’ height.  

(3) Recommendation for specific building setbacks, 30’ from west property line (homes), 25’ from 
south property line (church).  Also that stored equipment shall not exceed one (1) story in height, 
to protect the adjacent property owners (homeowners).   

Planner Hardgrove noted that all these conditions that go with the C-3 zoning will be documented in the  
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  The MOU is signed by the property owner, applicant and the 
city.  The MOU is to document the understanding and conditions for approval, for future use in the event 
that the property is sold.  

Planner Hardgrove said the last request is the Special Exception, and that applicant is requesting outdoor 
storage for use of the new lot. She also stated that staff is recommending approval of this request, but they 
cannot exceed 35’ in height within 100’ of residentially zoned property.   

Chris Mello from Boise Cascade came forward to speak, and he noted that they are requesting a 35’ high 
storage area with the roof.  He noted they usually don’t exceed 24’.  Mr. Mellow explained that due to the 
building being fire sprinklered, anything higher, the fire suppression system would not work.  

Administrative Assistant Wild called the first person to speak. 

The following resident’s filled out speaker cards to address their concerns to the P&Z Board: 
• David Slaten

o His name was called but he declined to speak, and he deferred his Randy Sumner.
• Randall Sumner – 305 Kruegor St., Orlando, 32839  ~ President of South Lake Holden HOA
• Denver Bass – 4515 Forrestal Ave

o His name was called to speak, but he declined to speak.
• Doris Click – 228 Doolittle St.

o Her name was called to speak, but she declined to speak and deferred her time to Jim Worthen.
• Billie Marie Fitzhugh – 4516 Forrestal Ave
• David Nesbit – 4360 Ilene Ct.
• Jim Worthen ~ HAINC – P.O. BOX 568412, Orlando, 32856

2 



Jim Worthen provided the conditions that the HOA would like to see, because as he stated “they 
(HAINC) felt that the conditions as provided in the Planner’s report were inadequate and not complete”. 
Mr. Worthen also provided a news article for the P&Z Board related to “bedroom communities” like 
Edgewood.   

Chairwoman Dunay questioned the difference between Planner Hardgrove conditions for approval and 
HAINC’s requested conditions.  Mr. Worthen compared the conditions as provided by Planner Hardgrove 
and HAINC. Chairwoman Dunay thanked Mr. Worthen for his comments.  

Attorney Smith noted that Boise Cascade can come and speak and comment on what was commented 
previously.  

Chris Mello, representative of Boise Cascade came forward and referenced how a resident had noted that 
a retention pond is full of water.   He noted that SJRWMD comes out and monitors and cleans out the 
drain.  He said that their landscape staff does maintain and take care of grass and weeds when they can.  

He also noted the building height as referred to by another resident that they would need a minimum 
storage height of 24’. Mr. Mello confirmed for Chairwoman Dunay that the 24’ inside storage would 
equate to 35’ high building.  

Mr. Mello noted that an 8’ high masonry wall could be installed, and that Boise Cascade is agreeable to 
following the requirements per the City code.   

Chairwoman Dunay questioned the operational hours.   Mr. Mello noted that there are no limits that he is 
aware of.  He said they probably could operate 24 hours/7 days a week, but noted that they currently do 
not.  He also said that he wasn’t aware that they had any restrictions on their hours of operation.  Mr. 
Mello noted for Chairwoman Dunay that they usually start around 5 a.m., and are done by 7 or 8 p.m.  He 
noted that there are occasions when they work as late as 9 or 10 p.m.  He said that Boise is close to a 24 
hour operational facility. 

Board Member Lomas questioned Mr. Mello about the tractor trailers.  Mr. Mello noted that he is aware 
that there is no thru traffic on Holden.  He noted there is no through traffic from their trucks on Holden 
Ave.  Mr. Mello stated that their trucks use the entrance on Holden and are not in violation of the law. 
Board Member Lomas noted that she remembered when Boise took over the property that no trucks were 
allowed on Holden Avenue, and that they would only enter and exit onto Orange Avenue. Mr. Mello 
noted that may have been before his time because in the two and a half years being with Boise, he has not 
been made aware of that.  He stated if that is something they need to change to let them know.     

Jim Worthen provided a letter for the record dated 06/20/2001 from Boise addressing the concerns of “No 
Right Turn” Mayor noted that Holden is a county road and not a city road so he would need to confirm 
with the County on the policy for the road.  It was decided to re-address at a later time.  

Chairwoman Dunay asked if there were questions or comments from the Board. Board Member Lomas 
noted that if there is room from where the retention pond is located, move the building over.  She 
suggested that she would like to see it as far away from residential as possible.  Mr. Mello said that it is 
approximately 70’.   Planner Hardgrove said that where the retention pond is on the north, there is no 
visual buffer for the residents.   

3 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

July 14, 2014 



Chairwoman Dunay confirmed for resident Billie Fitzhugh, that the City can look into her concerns 
regarding traffic.    

Planner Hardgrove came forward and went over the different zoning districts in the city and the building 
height allowed. She noted that any use is allowed to be 35’ in height.  She also noted that the City would 
need to be very specific, and possibly allow 35’ for the whole property.   

Planner Hardgrove referred to HAINC comments and she stated her recommendations of their concerns.  

Chairwoman Dunay questioned if Mr. Worthen would like to come forward to speak, and he noted the 
hours of operation that are posted on the Boise Cascade gate.  Attorney Smith confirmed for Board 
Member Lomas that if they operate outside of their hours of operation it would become a Code 
Enforcement issue.  Chairwoman Dunay questioned Attorney Smith about limiting their hours of 
operation; Attorney Smith confirmed for Chairwoman Dunay that any restrictions for Boise would only 
be limited to the new portion of Boise property.  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Chairwoman Dunay questioned if there was any further discussion or questions. Attorney Smith reminded 
Chairwoman Dunay on the motions that will be required.  

Recommendation 1: Approve the subdivision with the following condition:  
Joint use of the “north lot” with an adjacent parcel that provides standard public road access to the property. 

Board Member Lomas made the motion to recommend approval based on conditions; Seconded by Chairwoman 
Dunay.  Unanimously approved 3/0.  

 Recommendation 2: Approve C3 zoning on the north 194.4 feet of the church property (1.19 acres) with the 
following conditions:  
(1) The property is to be used with adjacent C-3 zoned land;  

(2) An 8 feet high masonry wall shall be constructed along the west property boundary; 

(3) A landscape buffer shall be provided along the west property boundary to include irrigated, large non-deciduous 
trees and/or shrubs adjacent to the wall that will achieve a dense visual screening from 8 feet to at least 25 feet in 
height;  

 (4) Building setback shall be 30 from residential zoned land west of the property and 25 feet from residential zoned 
land south of the property. Use of the specified setbacks shall be limited to landscaping and storm water 
management. Structures, including accessory buildings, shall not be allowed within the building setback;  

(5) Buildings shall be limited to one story and a maximum of 35 feet in height; 

(6) Operational hours shall be limited to 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.; 

(7) No cutting or sawing activities shall occur outside of a completely enclosed building; and, 

(8) The conditions of approval shall be notated on the City of Edgewood Zoning Map and shall run with the Subject 
property as documented in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) executed by the Owner, Applicant, and City. 
The Owner/Applicant shall cause the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to be recorded in order to place 
subsequent purchasers on notice of the additional zoning restrictions placed upon the Subject Property. 

4 



Board Member Rayburn made the motion to approve based on conditions; Seconded by Chairwoman Dunay.  
Unanimously approved 3/0.  
Recommendation 3: Approve a Special Exception in the C3 district for Outdoor Storage of merchandise, 
parts or other equipment with the following conditions:  

(1) No materials, equipment or other goods stored outdoors shall exceed 24 feet in height. 

(2) Per Section 134-104, the special exception shall expire 12 months after the effective date of the approval unless 
the rights of the special exception granted have been exercised prior to the expiration date. Acquisition of 
necessary building permits/interior alterations, installation of required equipment or initiation of the activity 
granted shall be considered adequate exercising of the special exception rights. If the use is abandoned for a 
period of six months, such special exception is terminated. 

Board Member Lomas made the motion to approve based on conditions; Seconded by Chairwoman Dunay.  
Unanimously approved 3/0.  

Attorney Smith confirmed with Ellen Hardgrove that the re-zoning will go before the City Council 
meeting tomorrow evening.  He said that the Lot Split and Special Exception application will be heard at 
the next City Council meeting in August.  He noted that this is due to the rezoning requiring two (2) 
readings before adoption.  All three (3) applications will be on the August City Council Agenda.   

Administrative Assistant Wild confirmed for Chairwoman Dunay that there is no other business just the 
upcoming meetings as noted on the Agenda.  Chairwoman Dunay announced the meetings and that they 
will be posted on the website.  

COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

With no further business or discussion, the Planning and Zoning Board meeting adjourned at 8:13 p.m. 

___________________________ 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 

ATTEST 

_____________________ 

Bea L. Meeks, MMC, CPM 
City Clerk  

5 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

July 14, 2014 



cc: Mayor 
 Ellen Hardgrove, AICP, City Planning Consultant 

Applicant (by City Hall Staff)  FILE: FEG 11-081; TA-13-036 

405 Larue Avenue - Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 
(407) 851-2920 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: MS. BEA MEEKS, CITY CLERK 

FROM: SAM J. SEBAALI, P.E., FLORIDA ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. - CITY ENGINEER 

DATE:  OCTOBER 8, 2014 

SUBJECT: THE RUSSELL HOME – SITE PLAN APPLICATION REVIEW 
OWNER – RUSSELL HOME FOR ATYPICAL CHILDREN, INC. 
501 HOLDEN AVENUE 
FEG TA-13-036 

Pursuant to your request, I have reviewed the site plans dated October 3, 2014, which were submitted by the 
applicant to the City of Edgewood and received by FEG on October 7, 2014. My review did not include the 
landscaping for the project as this component is being reviewed by the City Planning Consultant, Ellen 
Hardgrove. 

I recommend approval of the submitted plans subject to the following conditions: 

CONDITIONS: 

1. Upon completion of the improvements, the Engineer of Record shall provide the City with an as-
built record drawing of the completed project along with a letter certifying that the improvements
were built in substantial compliance with the approved plans and permit documents.

2. The contractor is responsible for the notification, location and protection of all utilities that may
exist within the project limits.

3. Per the construction site inspection requirements of the Orange County MS4 Permit FLS00001 [Part
III(A)(9)(b)], the Contractor is to notify the City Engineer at SSebaali@feg-inc.us of their intended
start of construction and construction duration.  This notification should be provided a minimum of
three (3) working days prior to commencement of construction.

4. Approval of these plans, if granted by the City of Edgewood, does not grant authority to enter,
construct or otherwise alter the property of others, nor does it waive any permits that may be
required by federal, state, regional, county, or other agencies that may have jurisdiction.

5. The applicant is responsible for all fees associated with the procurement of the site permits.



cc: Mayor 
 Ellen Hardgrove, AICP, City Planning Consultant 

Applicant (by City Hall Staff)  FILE: FEG 11-081; TA-13-036 

405 Larue Avenue - Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 
(407) 851-2920 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: MS. BEA MEEKS, CITY CLERK 

FROM: SAM J. SEBAALI, P.E., FLORIDA ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. - CITY ENGINEER 

DATE:  OCTOBER 8, 2014 

SUBJECT: THE RUSSELL HOME – TREE REMOVAL REVIEW 
OWNER – RUSSELL HOME FOR ATYPICAL CHILDREN, INC. 
501 HOLDEN AVENUE 
FEG TA-13-036 

Pursuant to your request, I have reviewed the tree removal permit application re-submittal made by the 
applicant on October 7, 2014.  As required by the Tree Management and Protection requirements of the City 
Code, Chapter 130, this permit is being reviewed as part of the site plan approval process. 

According to the revised tree removal application, the applicant is proposing to remove a total of twelve (12) 
trees.  None of the subject trees meet the size requirements for Historic Tree designation.  The trees 
proposed for removal also fall within the proposed improvement areas, and their removal is necessary to 
construct the proposed improvements.   

Adequate replacement trees are provided to mitigate the proposed tree removal.  Therefore, the tree removal 
application can be approved.   

The approval recommendation is subject to the following conditions: 

1. No other trees, other than those shown on the Landscape Plan to be removed, are to be removed or
relocated without City approval.  Any additional trees, which are found to be removed at final
inspection, will be subject to replacement requirements as outline in the Tree Management and
Protection requirements of the City Code, Chapter 130.

2. Tree protection shall be provided during and after construction as required by the Tree Management
and Protection requirements of the City Code, Chapter 130.

3. Final approval and issuance of Certificate of Occupancy for the building will be subject to
inspection of the landscape installation and tree replacement as provided in the City Code.



405 Larue Avenue - Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 
(407) 851-2920 

To: Planning and Zoning Board 

From:  Ellen Hardgrove, AICP, City Planning Consultant 

Date:  October 9, 2014 

Subject: Site Plan Approval – Russell Home 

I.  Introduction 

On March 10, 2014, the City Council approved the recommendations of the Planning and 
Zoning Board related to requested variances for Russell Home renovations/expansion. The 
following provides a summary of the approval with the associated conditions of approval.  

Variance #1 – Front Yard Setback: Approved for 26.5 feet.  
Conditions 
• Maintenance of a 6 feet high opaque fence along the north property line where

adjacent to residentially used lots. 
• Planting and clustering trees to fill in the gaps of existing trees on the adjacent

property to the north. This will be applied during the site plan permitting stage. The 
intent is to create an illusion of depth and break up the bulk of the building, and 
buffering. “Understory trees should be used.”  

• “Exterior lighting to be downlighting to minimize glare on adjacent properties.”
• Building height limited to one story within 30 feet of the north property line.

Variance #2 – Rear Yard Setback (south): Approved for 26 feet.  
Conditions 
• The rear yard variance is only approved in the location of the existing playroom and

the new addition as shown on the site plan dated 2/10/14. 
• Maintenance of a 6 feet high opaque fence along south side where adjacent to

residentially used property; 
• Building height limited to one story within 35 feet of the south property line.

Variance #3 – Dumpster location and screening: Approved to be located in front 
(north) yard.   

Variance #4 – Screening of Vehicle Use Area from residential property (south property 
line): Approved for no landscaping.  

Conditions 
• Orange County Fire Department approves the design for fire emergency vehicle

turnaround [Letter to be submitted with site plan approval]. 

Russell Home Site Plan Review --  Page 1 



• Parking of any vehicle, including any Loading/unloading, in the “hammerhead” as
shown by diagonal lines on the 2/10/14 site plan shall be prohibited.

• Installation of a 6 feet high opaque fence along the south property line adjacent to
the emergency turnaround to the southeast corner of the property. If County objects
to an opaque 6 feet high fence installed where  adjacent to the County easement
that extends from south of the south property line of the subject property, the
existing chain link fence can be maintained in lieu of the opaque fence.

Note: Variance #4 relates to the Code’s required screening of Vehicle Use Areas. Where Code 
requires 7 feet of landscaped buffer, the approval was for total elimination of the buffer/ landscaping. 
The discussion at the hearing was the landscape buffer was not needed since there was to be at 
least 30 feet of what appears to be green space between the property line and vehicle use area 
created by the fire truck turnaround area on grass over a stabilized base.  

The condition of the variance approval was to obtain a letter from the Fire Department that shows 
acceptance of this non-traditional material to accommodate their equipment.  The City has received 
confirmation that the proposed stabilized ground material could be supported if the material can 
accommodate a 41 ton fire-vehicle.  The Fire Department also noted the “green” area would need to 
be signed so that any responding apparatus would be aware that it was there.  

Variance #5 – Screening of Vehicle Use Area from residential property (east property 
line): Approved 6’ wide buffer width with 6’ high chain link fence.   

Variance #6 – Impervious Surface Ratio: Approved for maximum 67% proposed with 
understanding drainage plan will be analyzed and approved during site plan review. 

II. Site Plan Conditions of Approval

Development shall be consistent with Site Plan date stamped “Oct 03 2014 John Carson
Kelly.”  Any change to the plan, including but not limited to use of pervious stabilized base
for fire-truck turn-around, must be resubmitted for City of Edgewood staff review and may
require re-approval by City of Edgewood Council.

No Parking Fire Lane signs shall be spaced a maximum of 25 feet apart in fire vehicle turn-
around area [east, south and west edges].

Landscaping shall be consistent with FNGLA Site Plan dated 9/19/14.

ESH 

XC: Bea Meeks, City Clerk 

Russell Home Site Plan Review --  Page 2 







































ORDINANCE 2014-10 1
2

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, ORANGE 3 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR A FUTURE LAND USE 4 
MAP AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 5 
CHANGING THE DESIGNATION OF PROPERTY TOTALING 6 
10.293 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, WHICH PROPERTY HAS 7 
ORANGE COUNTY PARCEL I.D. NUMBERS 13-23-29-0000-00-009, 8 
13-23-29-0000-00-024, AND 13-23-29-0000-00-005, FROM LOW 9 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO COMMERCIAL TO CORRECT A 10 
SCRIVENER’S ERROR; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING 11 
ORDINANCES, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 12 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 13 

14 
WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood is committed to planning and managing the future 15 

growth and redevelopment of the City; and 16 
17 

WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood has the authority to amend its Comprehensive Plan 18 
pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes; and 19 

20 
 WHEREAS, in its most recent EAR Based Amendments the City transmitted a Future 21 
Land Use Map that incorrectly and inadvertently identified the subject properties as Low Density 22 
Residential; and 23 

24 
 WHEREAS, it was not the intent nor the decision of the City Council of the City of 25 
Edgewood to amend the Future Land Use Map designations of the subject properties in the EAR 26 
Based Amendments; and 27 

28 
 WHEREAS, in order to ensure accurate reflection of the actual adopted Future Land Use 29 
Map designations of the subject properties, the City of Edgewood finds it necessary to process 30 
this Future Land Use Map amendment to correct the scrivener’s error; 31 

32 
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency held 33 
a public hearing on _______________________, to consider this amendment to the Future Land 34 
Use Map of the City of Edgewood Comprehensive Plan; and 35 

36 
WHEREAS, the City Council, held public hearings to consider the amendment, in 37 

accordance with the controlling provisions of State law; and 38 
39 

WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood has complied with all requirements and procedures 40 
of Florida law in processing this amendment to the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 41 

42 
WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood hereby finds and determines that the amendment is 43 

internally consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the City of Edgewood 44 
Comprehensive Plan and other controlling law to include, but not limited to, Chapter 163, 45 

Page 1 of 3 
ORDINANCE 2014-10 



Florida Statutes, and the provisions of the State Comprehensive Plan as codified at Chapter 187, 46 
Florida Statutes. 47 

48 
NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to Policy 1.1.4 of the Future Land Use 49 

Element. 50 
51 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 52 
OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 53 

54 
Section 1: The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted as legislative findings of 55 

the City Council of the City of Edgewood, Florida. 56 
57 

Section 2:     Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Future Land Use Map 58 
59 

a) The City’s Future Land Use Map, and Ordinances which adopted and amended60 
said Future Land Use Map, are hereby amended to designate the subject properties with Orange 61 
County Parcel ID numbers, 13-23-29-0000-00-009, 13-23-29-0000-00-024, and 13-23-29-0000-62 
00-005, as more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein, 63 
as Commercial on the Future Land Use Map. 64 

65 
b) That portion of the Future Land Use Map of the City of Edgewood is hereby66 

amended to designate the subject property from Low Density Residential to Commercial, as 67 
depicted on the Future Land Use Map attached hereto as Attachment “B” and by this reference 68 
incorporated herein. 69 

70 
Section 3: Conflicts. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with any 71 

of the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 72 
73 

Section 4: Severability. If any Section or portion of a Section of this Ordinance 74 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 75 
validity, force, or effect of any other Section or part of this Ordinance, it being the legislative 76 
intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 77 

78 
 Section 5.  After the first public hearing, one paper copy hereof and two electronic PDF 79 
copies on a CD ROM shall be transmitted to the Department of Economic Opportunity, and a 80 
copy shall be submitted to each of: the East Central Florida Regional Planning Council, the St. 81 
Johns River Water Management District, the Department of Environmental Protection, the 82 
Department of State, the Department of Transportation, Orange County, and any other unit of 83 
local government or governmental agency in the State of Florida that has filed a written request 84 
with the Clerk of the City of Edgewood, Florida. 85 

86 
Section 6.  This Ordinance shall become effective 31 days after the Department of 87 

Economic Opportunity notifies the City that the Plan Amendment package is complete, or on the 88 
date a final order is issued by the Department of Economic Opportunity or Administration 89 
Commission finding the amendment in compliance, whichever occurs sooner. No development 90 

Page 2 of 3 
ORDINANCE 2014-10 



permits or land uses dependent on this amendment may be issued or commence before it has 91 
become effective. 92 

93 
FIRST READING on the _____ day of _______, 2014. 94 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Edgewood, Florida, this ____ day of 95 
___________________, 2014. 96 

97 
___________________________ 98 
John Dowless, Council President 99 

100 
 101 
ATTEST: 102 

103 
 104 
Bea Meeks, MMC 105 
City Clerk 106 

107 
108 
109 
110 

Page 3 of 3 
ORDINANCE 2014-10 



2014 Future Land Use Amendment-CEMEX Parcel Correction Page 1 

Administrative Future Land Use Amendment (Large-Scale) 

Request: Assignment of a Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment 
designation from  Low Density Residential (LDR) to Commercial to 
correct a scrivener's error 

Location: Three parcels located at the Northwest Intersection of W. Mary Jess 
Road and Orange Avenue, also known as the CEMEX properties 

Parcel IDs: 13-23-29-0000-00-009 [4.5 acres] 
13-23-29-0000-00-024 [0.834 acres] 
13-23-29-0000-00-005 [4.959 acres] 

Please see the maps below, which reflects the existing uses of the properties, the adopted 
Future Land Use Designations of the properties, and the proposed (corrected) Future Land Use 
Designations. 

Data and Analysis 

At the time the EAR-based amendments were adopted, the data and analysis used to prepare 
the amendments was based off the 2008 EAR, as well as a future land use ordinance history, 
and updated to reflect changes since that time.  

The Future Land Use Map was updated to be current as of 2013, however, it was discovered 
following adoption of the EAR-based amendments, that there are errors on the three parcels 
that are the subject of this Large Scale Land Use Amendment. The combined acreage of the 
parcels is greater than ten acres (10.293 acres), which requires the Large Scale Land Use 
Amendment process to be followed per State law.  

As part of the future land use ordinance history, Ordinance 2009-01 reflected amendments on 
these parcels to Low Density Residential from Commercial. This was transmitted to the State for 
review but were never adopted. These should not have been reflected as they currently show 
on the 2013 adopted Future Land Use Map.  

The purpose of this Large Scale Land Use Amendment is to correct this scrivener's error and 
return the Map designation to the legal Future Land Use designation of Commercial for each of 
the three parcels. 

The data and analysis used to support this is the historical review of land use actions in the City. 
The properties in question were designated as Commercial through Ordinance No. 91-378, on 
December 17, 1991, which was the adoption of the City's original Comprehensive Plan. 

All other parcels within the City have been reviewed to ensure that no other scrivener's errors 
exist.  



2014 Future Land Use Amendment-CEMEX Parcel Correction Page 2 

The proposed amendments reflect the accurate legal standing of the parcels and bring the 
Future Land Use designations into consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and the zoning 
designations (C-3) of the properties. 

Because these proposed amendments correct a scrivener's error and return the properties to 
their legally and historically established Commercial Future Land Use designation, there is no 
affect or change to the availability of and the demand on sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, 
potable water and water supply, traffic circulation, and recreation. These remain the same.  

4.5 acres 

4.959 acres 

0.834 acres 



2014 Future Land Use Amendment-CEMEX Parcel Correction Page 3 






	1. 10-13-14 P&Z Agenda
	2. 05-12-14  Draft Minutes
	3. 06-09-14 Draft Minutes
	4. 07-14-14 Draft Minutes
	5. 10- Comp Plan Amendment (scrivener's error)
	ORDINANCE 2014-10
	Bea Meeks, MMC


	6. Edgewood 2014 LSLU CEMEX amendment package
	7. FLU2014 Exhibit A
	8. FLU2014 Exhibit B
	9. DRMP RTC letter
	10. RH - Emergency Vehicle Access Area load documentation
	11. RH - Roof_Impervious Area runoff vs. swale volume data
	12. 2014-10-08_SitePlanReviewMemo
	13. 2014-10-08_TreeRemovalReviewMemo
	14. Site Plan Recommendation PZ 100914



